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From 1888 to 1930s 
 

Definition of an Interurban: Pow-
ered by electricity rather than 

steam, interurbans facilitated com-
muter traffic in South Carolina’s 

upcountry and nationally until the 
coming of the automobile. 
More complex than street rail-

ways, yet smaller than interstate 
railroads, interurbans occupied a 
brief position in South Carolina’s 
transportation history. Powered by 
electricity rather than steam, inter-
urbans facilitated commuter traffic 
in South Carolina’s upcountry until 
the coming of the automobile. Run-
ning trains by electric power in this 
country did not receive serious con-
sideration until the end of the nine-
teenth century. Frank Sprague de-
veloped a method of mounting the 
electric motor in a way that would 
not subject it to undue shocks. He 
demonstrated it in 1888 in Virginia, 
and the invention was an immediate 
success. The electric-powered rail-
way was clearly technologically 
superior to previous means of trans-
portation, the horse-drawn streetcar, 
and the cable car. In 1890 seventy 
percent of American street railways 
were powered by animals; by 1902 
only three percent of street railways 
were not powered by electricity. By 
1895 people had begun to recognize 

the utility of electric railways for 
traffic between cities. 

Few of these lines operated in 
the South, but one of the most sig-
nificant lines in the country was 
South Carolina’s Piedmont and 
Northern. Developed between 1910 
and 1916, eighty-nine miles of track 
connected Spartanburg, Greenville, 
and Greenwood, with a spur to An-
derson. In addition to the more suc-
cessful Piedmont and Northern, 
South Carolina had two other inter-
urban lines. The Augusta-Aiken 
Railway ran for twenty-six miles 
between those two cities. The road 
was operated by the Georgia-
Carolina Power Company and 
opened for business on September 
8, 1902, under the name of the Au-
gusta and Columbia Railway Com-
pany. Its name changed to Augusta-
Aiken after 1911, and the line was 
abandoned in 1929. The other line 
was in the low country: the Charles-
ton-Isle of Palms Traction Compa-
ny, which began operation in Au-
gust 1898. A ferry took passengers 
from Charleston to Mount Pleasant, 
where they boarded the train for a 
ten-mile ride to the Isle of Palms. 
The road was originally operated by 
the Charleston Consolidated Rail-
way, Gas, and Electric Company. 
The railway entered receivership in 
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Wanted—Articles for the Carolina Conductor 
 Submit an article of 200 words or more with some photos and captions and see them in print. Every one of us 
has some unique railroad experience that would make interesting reading for our membership. Your editor 
always needs  more contributions of railway history and news.  

¬   Santa and Mrs. Claus are checking to make 
sure the railroad has the needed supplies for 
this Christmas heading to the North Pole. 

«   A IƻƭƛŘŀȅ DǊŜŜǝƴƎ from Western Union 
could be sent at the last minute to someone you 
may have forgotten on your card list.  
 If you waited too long to submit your list to 
Santa you could always send a Western Union 

{ŀƴǘŀƎǊŀƳΦ   ® 

¬   Western Union Telegrams used during the 

Christmas season in the 1950s.   ­ 
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1924 and was abandoned the following year. 
Although the Piedmont and Northern re-

mained in operation until 1969, the decline of 
the Augusta-Aiken and Charleston-Isle of Palms 
Traction Company mirrored national events. The 
automobile became affordable and popular in the 
1910s, and trucks began to eat away at freight 
business done by interurban lines. By the 1920s 
it was clear that automobiles were not a passing 
fad, and interurbans were abandoned across the 
country. The Great Depression made a revival of 
the interurban unlikely, and this once popular 
transportation option passed from the landscape. 

Charleston-Isle of Palms  
Traction Company 

The Electric Railway Journal of November 23, 
1912 reported: "James Sottile and his associates have 
concluded negotiations to take over the Seashore Di-
vision of the Charleston Consolidated Railway & 
Lighting Company between Mount Pleasant and the 

Isle of Pines, including all wharf property and ferry 
boats, together with the power house on Sullivan's 
Island, and have organized the Charleston-Isle of 

Palms Traction Company, which has elected James 
Sottile president and W.W. Fuller general superinten-
dent and chief engineer." 

The McGraw Electric Railway Manual of 1913 
reported: "Charleston-Isle of Palms Traction Co. In-
corporated in South Carolina Jan. 9, 1913, to pur-
chase the Seashore division of the Charleston Con-
solidated Railway, Gas & Electric Co., and to operate 
it as a separate property. Includes the railway be-
tween Mount Pleasant and the Isle of Palms, wharf 
property, ferry boats and the power house on Sulli-
van's Island. Does general lighting business in Mount 
Pleasant, Sullivans's Island and the Isle of Palms." 
The company operates 9 miles of track, 11 motor 
cars, and 8 other cars. Officers include; President 
James Sottile, Secretary Lawrence Pinckney, and Au-
ditor E.E. Hortman. 

The Electric Railway Journal of March 1, 1913 
reported: "P.H. Gadsden, president of the Charleston 
Consolidated Railway & Lighting Company, has is-
sued the following statement in regard to the negotia-
tions to transfer the Seashore division of the compa-
ny to the Charleston-Isle of Palms Traction Compa-
ny, the organization of which was noted in the Elec-
tric Railway Journal of Nov. 23, 1912, page 1084: 
'The contract with James Sottile, president of the 
Charleston-Isle of Palms Traction Company, for the 
purchase of the Seashore division of the Charleston 
Consolidated Railway & Lighting Company was 
conditioned among other things upon securing the 
release of the property by the trustees of the mort-
gage. At the last moment doubts were expressed by 
the trustee of its power to release. Mr. Sottile sug-
gested several plans for our consideration which 

Continued on Page 4 - LƴǘŜǊǳǊōŀƴ      

https://www.carolana.com/SC/Transportation/railroads/sc_street_railways_charleston.html
https://www.carolana.com/SC/Transportation/railroads/sc_street_railways_charleston.html
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would permit of the formal transfer of the property to 
him, but none of them effectually met the legal ques-
tions involved. It became necessary, therefore, to 
postpone the date for final settlement and transfer of 
the property until this question could be satisfactorily 
determined. In the meantime, it was agreed that we 
should operate the property for the account of the 
purchaser from Feb. 1st until the final settlement and 
transfer was effected.' ” 

The Electric Railway Journal of April 12, 1913, 
reported: "The Charleston-Isle of Palms Traction 
Company is reported to have taken over the Seashore 
division of the Charleston Consolidated Railway & 
Lighting Company on March 15, 1913, at midnight. 

The Seashore division of the company has been oper-
ated since Feb. 1, 1913, for the account of the 
Charleston-Isle of Palms Traction Company, pending 
the settlement of details connected with securing a 
release of the property embraced in the division from 
the trustees of the mortgage." 

The McGraw Electric Railway Manual of 1914 
reported that the Charleston-Isle of Palms Traction 
Company operated 10 miles of track, 11 motor cars, 
and 11 other cars. Capital stock $1,000,000. Officers 
include President & Treasurer James Sottile, Secre-
tary Lawrence Pinckney, and Auditor August 
Janssen, Jr. 

In 1913, the South Carolina State Legislature 
passed an act giving oversight jurisdiction of all 
"Interurban Railways" to the long-standing South 
Carolina Railroad Commission. In their 36th Annual 
Report for the year ending December 31, 1914, they 
provided their first information on the Charleston-
Isle of Palms Traction Company: Ferry to Mt. Pleas-

ant 2.73 mi, to Sullivan's Island 1.46 mi, to Isle of 
Palms 7.69 mi. 

The Electric Railway Journal of December 18, 
1915, reported: "Charleston-Isle of Palms Traction 
Company, Charleston, SC. This company reports that 
during 1916 it expects to build 1½ miles of 60lb. T-
rail track." 

The Electric Railway Journal of December 16, 
1916, reported: "Charleston-Isle of Palms Traction 
Company, Charleston, SC. This company reports that 
it will construct 1½ miles of new track during 1917." 

The Electric Railway Journal of April 12, 1919, 
reported: "A temporary injunction has been issued 
restraining the Railroad Commission and the Attor-

ney General of South Carolina from 
taking steps to enforce the order of 
the commission relative to the rates 
on the Charleston-Isle of Palms 
Traction Company's line at Mount 
Pleasant, Moultrieville, Atlanticville 
and on the Isle of Palms. In an order 
promulgated recently by the Rail-
road Commission the petition of the 
Charleston-Isle of Palms Traction 
Company for an increase in fares 
was refused, and the matter was 
turned over to the Attorney General 
to force compliance with the order 
of the commission of Oct. 2, 1918, 
directing that not more than 3 cents 
be charged for transportation over 
the railway. The company consid-

ered this unreasonable and confiscatory and appealed 
to the courts for relief." 

The Electric Railway Journal of August 7, 1920, 
reported: "An opinion recently handed down by 
Judge Smith of the Federal District Court holds that 
the rates charged by the Charleston-Isle of Palms 
Traction Company, 

Charleston, SC, are illegal in that they violate the 
terms of a state law limiting fares to 3 cents a mile. 
The State Railroad Commission last year authorized 
the company to charge a straight fare of 3 cents a 
mile with a minimum charge of 5 cents. The compa-
ny was later ordered by the commission to cease 
charging these rates. The company thereupon sought 
an injunction to restrain the commission from inter-
fering with it in the collection of the 3 cent rate. The 
court held that the company has the right to abandon 
operation and to liquidate its assets." 

The Electric Railway Journal of August 21, 1920, 

Continued on Page 3 - LƴǘŜǊǳǊōŀƴ 
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reported: "The Charleston-Isle of Palms Traction 
Company, Charleston, SC, has been authorized by 
the South Carolina Railroad Commission to charge 
a fare of 5 cents a mile on its lines. Under the new 
system many of the stations heretofore maintained 
are abolished, the company making stops each quar-
ter mile. The company some time ago took action to 
raise its fare above the previous 3 cent limit but was 
restrained by court order from doing so on the 
ground that a fare in excess of 3 cents a mile was 
prohibited under the State law. The company recent-
ly applied to the Federal District Court for permis-
sion to discontinue all service. It later asked the 
court to permit it to operate during a trial period of 
one year before rendering a decision." 

The Electric Railway Journal of January 7, 
1922, reported: "Federal District Court — Public 
Service Corporation Not Required to Operate at 
Continuing Loss. The public cannot require of a 
public service corporation the continued operation 
of its property under rates which would afford not 
only no adequate return on the capital invested, but 
would, entail a large continuing loss and the eventu-
al exhaustion of the entire capital. Charleston-Isle of 
Palms Traction Co. vs. Shealy et al., 266 Federal 
Rep., 406." 

The Electric Railway Journal of April 29, 1922, 
reported: "The Charleston-Isle of Palms Traction 
Company's line is right across the bay from Charles-
ton, with which it has connection by ferry owned by 
the company. The principal business is in summer, 
when all of the forty-two cars of the property are 
operated." 

"The usual method of operation is to send out a 
motor car with trailer followed by a motor car, as 
the line does not have loops at its terminals. On the 
arrival of the two car train at the end of the line, the 
following motor car couples up to the trailer, which 
is uncoupled from the first motor car." 

"This line has the distinction of having raised 
fares during the last five years from 30 cents to 
$1.30 for the round trip." 

The Electric Railway Journal of April 12, 1924 
reported: "Perroneau R. Rivers, Charleston, SC, has 
been appointed receiver of the Charleston-Isle of 
Palms Traction Company, by order of Judge H. A. 
M. Smith, in federal court upon petition of the Bal-
timore Trust Company, Baltimore, Md., trustee un-
der the indenture securing $250,000 of 5 per cent 

bonds. The sheriff of Charleston County, on Feb. 
21, seized the ferryboats and cars of the company, 
under attachment proceedings. He was ordered to 
show cause why he should not be restrained from 
proceeding to advertise and sell that portion of the 
property which he seized." 

"No resumption of operations of ferry and car 
service is contemplated. Meanwhile a public ferry 
and bridge service has been provided for in a bill 
passed by the General Assembly to take the place of 
service formerly run by the company." 

"The company was incorporated under the laws 
of South Carolina on Jan. 9, 1913. It took over the 
Seashore Division of the Charleston Consolidated 
Railway & Lighting Company, a line of 10 miles, 
extending from Mount Pleasant to Sullivan's Island 
and Isle of Palms, with its equipment and power-
house on Sullivan's Island. Mount Pleasant and 
Charleston are connected by ferry by the company 
by means of two ferry boats." 

The Electric Railway Journal of May 3, 1924, 
reported: "Judge Henry A. M. Smith recently hand-
ed down a decree ordering the final sale of the prop-
erty of the Charleston-Isle of Palms Traction Com-
pany, Charleston, SC, at public auction on May 7. 
Recently P. R. Rivers, Charleston, was appointed 
receiver of the company by order of Judge Smith in 
Federal court upon petition of the Baltimore Trust 
Company, trustee, under the indenture securing 
$250,000 of 5 per cent bonds. The Sheriff of 
Charleston County on Feb. 21 seized the ferryboats 
and cars of the company under attachment proceed-
ings. He was ordered to show cause why he should 
not be restrained from proceeding to advertise and 
sell that portion of the property which he seized. 
Arthur M. Huger, United States Commissioner, was 
named by Judge Smith in the order appointing a re-
ceiver as a special master in this matter. The proper-
ty will be offered for sale by Mr. Huger." 

"If efforts should fail to sell the property as a 
whole the master will be prepared to offer it in three 
parcels; the first will be composed of the wharves 
and slips located in Charleston, office furniture, ma-
terials and supplies; parcel 2 will be comprised of 
the tracks of the Charleston-Isle of Palms Traction 
Company as they now lie, and parcel 3 will include 
the cables, lighting and power systems, poles and 
overhead wiring." 

Continued on Page 6 - LƴǘŜǊǳǊōŀƴ  
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The Augusta-Aiken Railway 

Acronym: AARY, Year Chartered or Incorpo-
rated: 1901, Year Line Operational: 1902, Year Ser-
vice Ended: 1929, Original Starting Point: Augusta, 
GA, Original Ending Point: Aiken, SC 

1901 - The Augusta & Aiken Railway was char-
tered by the South Carolina Secretary of State on 
June 28, 1901. 

1907 - Company authorized to sell all assets to 
the newly created Augusta & Columbia Railway on 
February 13, 1907. 

1911 - On April 10, 1911, the Augusta & Colum-
bia Railway was re-organized as the August-Aiken 
Railway & Electric Company. All subsequent report-
ing simply referred to this line as the Au-
gusta & Aiken Railway once again. 

Around the turn of the century, James 
U. Jackson and other land developers be-
gan construction on the luxurious Hamp-
ton Terrace Hotel in North Augusta, South 
Carolina. An electric trolley was con-
structed to the resort hotel and quickly 
surveyed for extension to Aiken, South 
Carolina. The railroad reached Aiken in 
1902 and began operations that same year. 
The Hampton Terrace Hotel had its own 

spur track used to deliver coal and freight and re-
mained an important fixture of the route until it 
burned to the ground in 1916. 

Freight services over the line came in the form of 
an express car and electric boxcab locomotives. Most 
freight traffic consisted of coal delivered to the 
Hampton Terrace Hotel or to the numerous cotton 
mills along the line. 

As with many other interurban railroads in the 
United States, the advent of the automobile helped 
bring about the end of the Augusta & Aiken Railway 
in 1929, when the line was completely abandoned. 

In 1913, the South Carolina State Legislature 
passed an Act giving oversight jurisdiction of all 
"Interurban Railways" to the long-standing South 

Continued on Page 7 - LƴǘŜǊǳǊōŀƴ 
AARY power house, car house, and shops. 
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Carolina Railroad Commission. In their 
36th Annual Report for the year ending De-
cember 31, 1914, they provided their first 
information on the Augusta & Aiken Rail-
way: 

The 37th Annual Report of the South 
Carolina Railroad Commission for the year 
ending December 31, 1915 asserted that: 
"The Augusta-Aiken Electric Railway 
Company has installed, by order of the 
commission, permanent partition for the 
separation of the races on most of its cars, 
and has also installed closets at each end of 
the cars. This road has also made extensive 
improvements as to roadbed and track." 

Stations and miles from starting point: 
Augusta, GA  0 miles, Tobin, SC  
3.27miles, Belvedere, SC  5.50 miles, Pow-
er House, SC  7.15 miles, Clearwater, SC  
9.27 miles, Bath, SC  10.69 miles, Langley, 
SC  11.86 miles, Warrensville, SC  15.92 
miles, Graniteville, SC  16.66 miles, Sub-
Station No. 5, SC  18.07 miles, Moseley, 
SC  20.61 miles, Arbutus Hill, SC  21.76 
miles, Aiken, SC  23.61 miles. 

 

 

Historical Markers 
The Augusta and Aiken Railway, a 26-mile 

interurban electric trolley line between Au-
gusta, Ga., and Aiken, operated from 1902 
to 1929. In Aiken the line began at the cor-
ner of Park Ave. & Union St., proceeded 
west on Park, then north on Laurens St., 
then west on Hampton Ave., and toward 
Augusta on what is now Trolley Line Rd. The 
first passengers paid 25 cents to ride 2 
hours one way or 4 hours for a round trip. 
 In 1906 the railway bought 4 new passen-
ger cars with 52 seats each. Built by the J.G. 
Brill Car Co. of Philadelphia, they were nick-
named "Big Reds." Stops between Aiken 
and Augusta were Graniteville, Madison, 
Warrenville, Gloverville, Langley, Bath, 
Clearwater, Summerhill, and North Augusta. 
The trolley line struggled with the advent of 
the automobile and made its last run from 
Aiken on July 8, 1929. 

Wooden trestle on the AARY. 
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Check out the CRHA: 
www.hubcityrrmuseum.org/carolina-railroad-

heritage-association 
www.facebook.com/groups/crhainc/ 

Check out the HCRRM:  
www.hubcityrrmuseum.org 

www.facebook.com/hubcityrrmuseum/ 

 

®  P&N passenger train on the Chick Springs trestle. 

¬  P&N train stopped at the Belton station. 

¬  P&N business car #100. 

®  P&N train in Greenville circa 1914. 

We have previously covered this rail-
way so I am showing some additional 
photos this month.  P&N ran passen-
ger service until 1951.   9ŘΦ 


